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To

The Members

Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure &
Building Construction Corporation Ltd.,
Dehradun

The Directors of your Company take pleasure in presenting their 7" Annual Report on the business
and operations of the Company together with the Audited Accounts, Auditors’ Report and ‘No
Review Certificate’ of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2024. The details are as follows: -

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 2024 2023 l
Total Income 936.04 801.17
Less: Total Expenses B 992.03 879.23
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional and (55.99) (78.06)
Extraordinary items & Tax
Add: Exceptional Items 71.78
Less: Tax Expense .
Current Year - -
Provision for Tax Earlier Year - -
Deferred Tax Assets 19.54 (0.15)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (75.54) (6.13)
B. Additional Assets:
Property, Plant & Equipment
Tangible Assets 72.68 100.13
Intangible Assets ) 0.21 0.74
Capital work in progress 1974.83 1926.41
Total - 2047.72 2027.28

2. TRANSFER TO CAPITAL RESERVE

An amount of Rs. Nil lakhs- Net (Previous year Rs. 177.96 lakhs) transferred to Capital

Reserve.
. DIVIDEND

As your company has not yet started any commercial operations of any project and there is

no profit during the Financial Year 2023-24.

Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend for the

Financial Year ended 31% March, 2024.
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4. STATE OF UTTARAKHAND MRTS PROJECT

An initiative by Government of Uttarakhand to offer world class, state-of-art commuting
facilities, building infrastructures and integrated townships to its residents and with a vision
to improve the quality of lifestyle of the citizens of Uttarakhand, the company was
constituted as Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure & Building
Construction Corporation Limited.

The basic objectives towards the formation of the company are:

a) To plan, design, develop, construct, maintain and / or operate metro rail or other
similar mass rapid transport system of all types and descriptions including mass
movers either individually or in association with other Undertakings and Companies or
persons in India and/or abroad.

b) To plan, construct, develop, administer, manage, control and / or maintain all types of
buildings either individually or in association with other Undertakings and Companies
or persons in India and/or abroad.

¢) To plan, design, develop, construct, maintain and / or operate townships of all types
and descriptions, either individually or in association with other Undertakings and
Companies or persons in India and/or abroad

5. Status of Various Projects

The Status of various projects of Corporation is as under:

A. Metro Neo in Dehradun city: -

The board vide minutes of item no. 30/4 of 30" BoD directed to send the proposal to
implement the project with resources of GoUK with following two options out of which
final decision of the option to implement would be taken in PIB and then the proposal
would be sent for Hon’ble Cabinet’s approval:-

i.  40% funding by GoUK and 60% funding through domestic borrowing by UKMRC
with sovereign guarantee of GoUK.
ii. 100% funding by GoUK.

It was also directed by the Board that simultaneously, the ridership assessment be
got verified from M/s McKinsey & Company who are already on board with GoUK.
Details have been provided to M/s Mckinsey & Company and they are verifying
ridership assessment and DPR parameters.

The proposal for Public Investment Board (PIB) to implement the project with the
resources of GoUK has been sent to GoUK vide letter dated 02.08.2024. Proposal is
under examination by the Technical Audit Committee (TAC). Updated DPR has also
been submitted.

B. Har-Ki-Pauri - Chandi Devi Ropeway: -
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As per decision of GoUK vide letter no 181495/V-1/2022/E-13148/2023, dt.
11.01.2024 to defer the project till the finalisation of Haridwar Redevelopment corridor
project, the tender was discharged. As requested by ADM Executive, Haridwar vide
letter no. LASA/73915/Haridwar/2024-25/40 dated 13.05.2024, all the required
documents regarding the project have been made available to M/s LEA Associates
(who is the consultant of Haridwar Redevelopment work under UIIDB) on 16.05.2024
in joint meeting and ADM Executive, Haridwar was informed vide UKMRC office
letter no. 24406/E-File/9452/2024-25 dated 31.05.2024.

. Triveni Ghat - Neelkanth Ropeway: -

As decided in 30" Board Meeting, Tender of Triveni Ghat- Neelkanth Ropeway will be
invited after getting at least Govt. land, Forest & Wildlife clearance and NOC from
Rishikesh Re-development agency. The current status of the same is as under:
Government Land of Pauri of 0.2608 Ha has been transferred to Housing Department
which is now to be transferred to UKMRC for the project. 0.2262 Ha land falling under
Jalmagn category is to be used as Drainage construction work around Neelkanth
Station needs to be transferred from Revenue Department, GoUK as DM, Pauri has
cleared the same. Details of private land in required format have also been submitted
to DM/Pauri.

Proposal of Stage-I Forest clearance has been forwarded by Director, Rajaji Tiger
Reserve and is at Nodal Officer level. The file will go to State Secretary, Forest and
then to regional office for in Principle approval.

State Board for Wild Life (SWBL) through its meeting on 19™ July 2024 has cleared
the proposal of wildlife clearance and the file is now at MOEFCC awaiting for NBWL
meeting.

The details of the project have been shared with M/s Egis, Consultant preparing DPR
of Rishikesh Redevelopment corridor and matter is being followed up for clearance
with UIIDB, Nodal agency of Rishikesh Development along Ganga. NOC is awaited.
The issue of providing proper approach road to Triveni Ghat Station is being taken up
with UUSDA and Irrigation Department, GoUK.

. PRT (POD Taxi) System in Haridwar: -

As directed in 30" Board Meeting to get the financial model and assumptions like
ridership etc. vetted by independent agency, IIT Roorkee has been assigned the task.
The matter related to Objection of local/ Stakeholders about the alignment is constantly
being monitored with DM, Haridwar but issue is still to be concluded.

. Second Order PRT system in Dehradun city: -

It was informed to the Board that all studies e.g. Traffic Study, Geotechnical Study etc.
and Topographic survey are complete and drafting work of DPR is under way. The
DPR will be put up in next Board meeting.

The DPR of PRT System one corridor Gandhi Park to IT Park (6.22 km) with a project
cost of Rs 663.36 cr. is in the final stage. The project has been analysed with various
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financing options and the report is being examined departmentally. The DPR will be
put up to Board after verification of details and other two DPRs will be finalised
subsequently.

10.

11.

12.

13.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable as Company is not covered under the criteria mentioned in
Section 135(1) of Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company consistently endeavors to adopt the best practices of Corporate Governance
to ensure transparency, integrity and accountability in its functioning. The Corporate
Governance Report highlighting these endeavors is enclosed as Annexure-I.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The Company is pleased to report that during the year under reporting, the industrial
relations were cordial and the Company’s Human Resources is commensurate with the
size, nature and operation of the company.

OFFICIAL LANGUAGE
Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure and Building Construction Corporation

Limited is endeavoring to propagate the use of Hindi in official work.
RIGHT TO INFORMATION (RTI)

UKMRC has implemented the provisions of the Right to Information Act, 2005 in letter
and spirit. 12 RTI applications were received and disposed off during the year.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public under Section
2 (31), 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year under review.
Also, there is no unclaimed or unpaid deposit lying with the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

UKMRC is an unlisted Company hence the provisioﬁs of Section 197 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the company.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
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The information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013 and related Rules regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo is as under:

A. Conservation of Energy
The Commercial operation of the Company has not yet been started.
B. Technology Absorption

The Company is at planning phase and the Commercial operation of the Company
has not yet been started.
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Company was not involved in activities relating to export and import during the
financial year under consideration.

14. AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C & AG) vide its Letter No./CA. V/COY/
UTTARAKHAND, UMRIBC (1)/1900 Dated 18-10-2023 appointed M/s Devi Dayal &
Associates (de2312), Chartered Accountant , C/O Mittal Laboratories Pvt Ltd, C-10/2, Sara
Industrial Estate Ltd, Village Rampur, 23 KM, Dehradun Chakrata Road, Selaqui,
Uttarakhand-248197, as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24
i.e. till the conclusion of its 7th Annual General Meeting. The Statutory Auditors’ has not
given any Qualification/negative remarks in their Audit Report for F.Y. 2023-24. The
Statutory Auditor’s Report on the Accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ended
as on 31% March, 2024 is enclosed.

In terms of the section 139 and 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Comments of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India stated that:-

“I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to
conduct the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Uttarakhand Metro Rail
Urban Infrastructure and Building Construction Corporation Limited for the year ended
31st March 2024 under Section 143 (6) (a) of the Act. The C&AG has not conducted the
supplementary audit and provided the “No Review Certificate” under section 143 (6) (b) of
the Companies Act,2013. The Report is enclosed.

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company’s Internal Financial Control System is adequate and commensurate with the
nature and size of the Company.
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17. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required under the provisions of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extracts
of the Annual Return of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 are enclosed
herewith.

18. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)
APPOINTED / RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

The composition of Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes
that took place during the year under review and Directors as on 31.03.2024 were as
follows:

Name Designation Address Date of Date of
. Appointment leaving |
Dr. Sukhbir Chairman/Chief Uttarakhand Secretariat, 05.07.2021 31.01.2024
Singh Sandhu | Secretary Subhash Road, Dehradun
Smt. Radha Chairman/Chief Uttarakhand Secretariat, 31.01.2024
Raturi Secretary Subhash Road, Dehradun
Shri Jitendra Managing Director B-402, 4% Floor, Whispering
Tyagi Willows Apartments, 174-4, 01.02.2017
Rajpur Road, Dehradun
Smt. Manisha Nominee Director/ Uttarakhand Secretariat,
Panwar AddL Chief Secretary | Subhash Road, Dehradun 07.08.2020 07.07.2023
Sh Anand Nominee Director/ Uttarakhand Secretariat, - 05.02.2019
Bardhan Addl. Chief Secretary | Subhash Road, Dehradun T
Sh. RK. Nominee Uttarakhand Secretariat,
Sudhanshu Director/Principal Subhash Road, Dehradun 21.05.2020
Secretary |
Dr.R Nominee Director/ Uttarakhand Secretariat,
Meenakshi Secretary Subhash Road, Dehradun 23.06.2022
Sundaram
Sh. Arvind Nominee Uttarakhand Secretariat,
Singh Hyanki Director/Principal Subhash Road, Dehradun 23.06.2022
Secretary
Sh, Sachin Nominee Uttarakhand Secretariat,
Kurve Director/Secretary Subhash Road, Dehradun 31.08.2022 12.02.2024
Sh. Pankaj Nominee Uttarakhand Secretariat,
Kumar Pandey | Director/Secretary Subhash Road, Dehradun 07.07.2023
Sh. Arvind Director (Systems & Flat No. A 28, Block A,
Kumar Tyagi Rolling Stock) Jayanti Rail Nagar, Sector-
50, Noida, Gautam Buddh 02.04.2019 31.08.2023
Nagar, U.P.
Sh. Brajesh Director (Project & D-98, Sector-4,
Kumar Mishra | Planning) Defense Colony, Dehradun, 27.05.2019
Uttarkhand
Sh. Sanjiv Director (Finance) C-14, 1Ind Floor, Aruna park,
Mehta Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092 07.06.2023




19. None of the Director of the Company is disqualified under the provisions of section
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

20. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the

Company for the Financial Year under consideration.

21. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as at 31% March, 2024 was Rs.
20,00,00,000.00 divided into 2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each.

The Present Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company is
Rs. 10,00,000.00 divided into 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

22. VIGIL MECHANISM / WISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The provisions regarding Vigil Mechanism as provided in Section 177(9) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under are not applicable to the company for the
Financial year under consideration.

23. MATERIAL CHANGES

There has been no material change and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

24. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of the business in the financial year under review.

25. ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/COURTS
No orders have been passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which can impact the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

26. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

1. Names of companies which have become to be its subsidiaries, joint ventures or

associate companies during the year: N.A.
2. Names of companies which have ceased to be its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies during the year: N.A.

Since the Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Venture, the
disclosure of particulars with respect to information related to performance and
financial position of the Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies subject to
Rule 8(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.
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27. COMPLIANCE

The Company has complied with all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the
Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable Laws/Rules/Regulations/Guidelines issued
from time to time.

28. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year are as follows:-

Shri Jitendra Tyagi, Managing Director.

Shri. Arvind Kumar Tyagi, Director, Systems & Rolling Stock. (Retired on 31-08-23)
Shri. Brajesh Kumar Mishra, Director, Project & Planning.

Shri Sanjiv Mehta, Director, Finance (Joined on 07-06-23)

Shri Krishna Nand Sharma, Company Secretary.

29. DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The provisions of Section 149 (4) of the companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

= e

30. DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Provisions regarding Director’s Appointment and Remuneration Policy as mentioned under
Section 178(1) are not applicable to the Company.

31. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

The Board of Directors duly met 3 times respectively on 07.07.2023, 04.09.2023 and
26.12.2023 in respect of which proper notices were given and the proceedings were
properly recorded.

Date of the | No. of Directors Name of the Directors who attended the meeting
Board who attended the
meeting meeting
1. Dr. Sukhbir Singh Sandhu, Chief Secretary |
2. Shri Jitendra Tyagi, Managing Director
3. Shri Anand Bardhan, Addl. Chief Secretary, Housing &
Finance
07-07-2023 ;4) Shll‘i RK. Sl‘;cdhanshu, Principal Secretary, Urban
(25®meeting) 9 eve f)pmer}t Forest
| 5. Shri Sachin Kurve, Secretary Revenue
6. Shri Pankaj Kumar Pandey, Secretary PWD
7. Shri Arvind Kumar Tyagi, Director (S&RS)
8. Shri Brajesh Kumar Mishra, Director (P&P)
9. Shri Sanjiv Mehta, Director (Finance)
1. Dr. Sukhbir Singh Sandhu, Chief Secretary
04-09-2023 2. Shr? Jiter}dra Tyagi, Managing Director
26 5 3. Shrf Arv_md Singh Hyapki, Secretary Transport
meeting) 4. Shri Brajesh Kumar Mishra, Director (P&P)
5. Shri Sanjiv Mehta, Director (Finance)
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1. Dr. Sukhbir Singh Sandhu, Chief Secretary

2. Shri Jitendra Tyagi, Managing Director

26-12-2023 3. Shri Anand Bardhan, Addl. Chief Secretary, Finance &
(7" 6 Housing
meeting) 4. Dr. R. Meenakshi Sundaram, Secretary Planning

5. Shri Brajesh Kumar Mishra, Director (P&P)

6. Shri Sanjiv Mehta, Director (Finance)

32. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED
PARTIES U/S 188(1)

The Company has not entered into any transactions with the related parties for the year
ended on March 31, 2024 in pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

33. REPORT UNDER THE PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT ACT,
2013

There were no complaints reported under the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

34. EXPLANATION / COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR

ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Statutory Auditors have not issued any qualification in their report. The report is
enclosed at herewith.

35. PARTICULAR OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186

The Company has not granted any loan, given guarantees or made investments under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under
review.

36. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of
Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any;




b) that accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have
been selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the loss of the Company for the
year ended on that date;

¢) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating effectively.

37. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. Central
Government, Government of Uttarakhand, Government Authorities, Members and Banks
for the excellent support received from them during the financial year. The Board also
acknowledges and extends sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
Statuary Auditors, Consultant and technical experts for their continued support and Co-
operation. Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees,
executives and staff of the Company for their commitment and contribution to the growth
and performance of the Company.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 2.6° 0920 Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure
Place: Dehradun and Building Construction Corporation Ltd.
A iy
/{%\q\w = 5Cet
(Sanjiv Miehta) (Jitendra Tyagi)
Director (Finance) Managing Director
DIN: 10236581 DIN: 05262463
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Annexure-1I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

Corporate Governance is a process that aims to meet stakeholders’ aspiration and expectations. It is much more than complying
with the legal and regulatory requirements. The essence of good Corporate Governance lies in promoting and maintaining integrity,
transparency and accountability in the management’s higher echelons. Corporate Governance practices allows enhancement
of long-term value creation for all stakeholders without compromising on integrity, environment and regulatory compliances.

The Board ensures that it continuously evolves and follows the best corporate governance practices. Your Company has a strong
legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. For the Company, Corporate Governance is not a destination but a
continuous journey that seeks to provide an enabling environment to maximize stakeholders’ value. This belief is reflected in our
corporate governance practices. This report describes the corporate governance practices that the Company has adopted and
specifically highlights how the Company has applied the principles and practices of good Corporate Governance. Though UKMRC
is not a listed company, but keeping the underlying principles of Corporate Governance i.e. value, ethics and commitment to follow
best practices in view, your Directors place the following Corporate Governance Report before the Members of the Company:

1. Board of Directors

In terms of Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, strength of the Board shall not be less than 3
Directors and shall not exceed 13 directors. These Directors may be either whole- time functional Directors or
Government nominated part-time Directors.

2.1 Constitution of the Board

UKMRC is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. Presently, 100%
of the total paid-up share capital is held by Govt. of Uttarakhand and all the directors in the Board have been appointed/
nominated by the Government of Uttarakhand/Board.

2.2 Composition of the Board

As on 31st March 2024, the Board comprised 9 directors of which 3 are functional directors i.e. one Managing Director
and 2 functional Directors, 6 Directors including part-time Chairman were nominated by the Government of Uttarakhand.
The whole- time functional Directors and the nominee Directors are senior officers, who have wide range of experience in
the functioning of Government and possess top order administrative skills, financial and technical expertise.

2.3 Responsibilities

The primary role of the Board is that of guiding force to see that the mandate assigned to the Company by the
Government is fully met and at the same time the shareholders’ value is protected and enhanced. The Board ensures that
the Company has clear goals and policies for achieving these goals. The Board oversees the Company’s strategic
direction, reviews corporate performance, ensures regulatory compliance and safeguards interests of shareholders. The
Board ensures that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfills stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations.

The Board Members also ensure that their other responsibilities do not impinge on the responsibilities as a Director of the
Company.
24 Board Meetings and procedure
a) Institutionalized decision making process:

With a view to institutionalize all corporate affairs and setting up systems and procedures for advance planning for
matters requiring discussion, decision by the Board, the Company has well defined procedure for conducting meetings of
the Board of Directors whereby it is ensured that the information is disseminate in an informed and efficient manner.

b) Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board Meetings:

i. The meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice after obtaining approval of the Chairman of the Board.
Detailed agenda, management reports and other explanatory notes and statements are circulated in atleast 7 days
advance amongst the Members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the meetings.
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ii. The agenda papers are prepared by Company Secretary after consulting the concerned Head of
Departments/Functional Directors before being submitted to the Managing Director. The agenda papers are
thereafter circulated amongst the Board Members.

v. The Members of the Board have complete access to all information of the Company.

¢) Briefing by the Managing Director

At the beginning of each Meeting of the Board, the Managing Director briefs the Board Members about the key
developments including status of the Project and other important developments relating to functioning of the Company.

a. Recording minutes of proceedings at the Board Meeting

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board Meeting are recorded. The minutes of the proceedings are entered in the
Minutes Book. The Draft minutes of each Board Meeting are submitted for confirmation to all the directors. Further
the signed minutes are also submitted to all the directors.

b. Compliance

Every Head of Department and Functional Director ensures adherence to the provisions of applicable laws, rules,
guidelines, etc. The Company Secretary ensures compliance of all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

and other statutory requirements.

During the financial year 2023-24, three Board Meetings were held on, 07.07.2023, 04.09.2023 and
26.12.2023. Details of designation, category of directors and number of Board Meetings held/attended during
the year 2023-24 are tabulated below:

S.No. Name of Director Category DIN Meetings No. of Attendance at
held during | Meetings | the last AGM
tenure of the | attended (held on 29-
B Director 09-2023)
01 Dr. Sukhbir Singh Sandhu | Chairman/ Nominee of 00930112 3 3 Yes
State Govt. B
02 Shri Jitendra Tyagi Whole time functional 05262463
= 3 3 Yes
Director _ —
03 Sh. Anand Bardhan Nominee of State Govt. 07301205 3 2 No
04 Sh. RK. Sudhanshu Nominee of State Govt. 01248630 3 0 No
05 Dr. R. Meenakshi Nominee of State Govt. 06809241
S 3 1 No
undaram
06 Sh. Arvind Singh Hyanki | Nominee of State Govt. 02095010 3 1 No
07 Sh. Sachin Kurve Nominee of State Govt. 02484676 3 1 No
08 Sh. Pankaj Kumar Pandey | Nominee of State Govt. 05321620 3 1 No
09 Sh. Arvind Kumar Tyagi | Director (Systems & 08432307 1 1
Rolling Stock) S
10 Sh. Brajesh Kumar Director (Project & 08554064 3 3 Yes
Mishra Planning) '
11 | Sh. Sanjiv Mehta Director (Finance) 10236581 3 3 Yes

Information placed before the Board of Directors, inter alia, includes:
e MRT System for 2™ Order Corridor in Dehradun from Panditwari to Railway Station.
e  Approval of DPR for PRT (POD) System in Haridwar.
*  Approval of additional Organization Structure of the Corporation,
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2.6

2.7

2.8

e Approval of Procurement Manual for Works Contracts of UKMRC.
*  Approval to carry out CMP Study for plain area of Kumaon Region of Uttarakhand.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The various provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for constitution of Committees do not apply to the Company for the

Financial Year under consideration.

PAYMENT OF SITTING FEE TO PART TIME DIRECTORS: NIL.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

There were no related party transactions entered into by the Company with its Promoters, Directors or Management, their

subsidiaries or relatives, etc. which had potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The 6™ Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29.09.2023.

Company’s Website:

The Company’s Website is www.ukmrc.org. All major information pertaining to the Company, including tenders,

recruitment etc. are given on the website,

Registered office

Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure &
Building Construction Corporation Limited
CIN: U45309UR2017SGC007687

4™ Floor SCI Tower, Haridwar Bypass Road,
NH 72, Ajabpur, Dehradun, Uttarakhand 248121
Phone No: 0135-2719442

Website: www.ukmrc.org
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Company Secretary

Shri Krishna Nand Sharma

Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure &
Building Construction Corporation Limited

4™ Floor SCI Tower, Haridwar Bypass Road,
NH 72, Ajabpur, Dehradun, Uttarakhand 248121
Mobile No. 7253999555

E-Mail: cs@ukmrc.org
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II.

I1I.

Iv.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended 31% March,2024

Annexure-Il

(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,2014) Form No. MGT-9
Registration and other details.

CIN CIN

U45309UR2017SGC007687

Registration Date

23.03.2017

Name of Company

Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure &
Building Construction Corporation Limited

Address of the Registered office and

4™ Floor, SCI Tower, NH-72, Opposite Mahindra

Registrar and Transfer Agent, If any

contact details - Showroom, Haridwar Bypass Road, Ajabpur,
Dehradun, Uttarakhand- 248121

Whether listed Company NO

Name, Address and Contact details of | N.A. ]

Principal Business Activities of Company
All the Business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company

shall be stated.
Sr. Name and Description of Main NIC Code of the % to total
No Products/Services Product/Services | turnover of the
i I Company
No Commercial Operations/construction NA NA

activities have been started by the
Company during the Financial Year under
consideration.

Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

Not Applicable
Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Presently 100% of the total paid-up share capital is held by Govt. of Uttarakhand or its

21

nominees.
Category of | No. of shares held at the beginning of the | No. of shares held at the end of the year %Change
Shareholde | year 01.04.2023 31.03.2024 during
r the year
A. IN | Demat | Physical | Total %of Total | Demat | Physical Total %of Total
DIAN Shares Shares
Govt of Nil 1,00,000 | 1,00,000 | 100% Nil 1,00,000 1,00,000 100% No
Uttarakhand
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Indebtedness
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.
Secured Loans Unsecured | Deposits Total
excluding deposit Loans (Rupees | Indebtedness
(Rupees in Lakh) | (Rupeesin | in Lakh) (Rupees in
Lakh) Lakh)
Indebtedness at the beginning of | Nil Nil Nil Nil
the financial year
1) Principle Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+iiHiii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Change in Indebtedness during | Nil Nil Nil Nil
the financial year
-Addition
-Reduction
Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil
| Indebtedness at the end of Nil Nil Nil Nil
financial year
1) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i-+iiHii) Nil Nil Nil Nil

REMUNERATIN OF DIRCTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
VIL Remuneration to Managing Directors, Whole-time Directors and /or Manager/KMP

S. No. Name of MD/WTD/Manager
01 Name Sh. Jitendra Tyagi
02 Designation Managing Director
03 DIN (Director Identification No.) 05262463
04 Salaries & Allowances 62,25,486.00
05 Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 5,53,065.00
06 Other Benefits 3,90,840.00
07 Total (Included in Employees Cost) 71,69,391.00
08 Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year NIL
09 Advances released during the year NIL T
10 Closing Balance of Loans & Advances NIL

15
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S. No. Name of MD/WTD/Manager
01 Name Sh. Arvind Kumar Tyagi
02 Designation (upto 31-08-2023) Director-System & Rolling Stock
03 DIN (Director Identification No.) 08432307
04 Salaries & Allowances 22,58,104.00
05 Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 1,99,551.00
06 Other Benefits 4,56,840.00
07 Total (Included in Employees Cost) 29,14,495.00
08 Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year NIL
09 Advances released during the year NIL
10 Closing Balance of Loans & Advances NIL
S. No. Name of MD/WTD/Manager
01 Name Sh. Brajesh Kumar Mishra
02 Designation Director- Project & Planning
03 DIN (Director Identification No.) 08554064
04 Salaries & Allowances 53,91,816.00
05 Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 4,79,004.00
06 Other Benefits 9,68,617.00
07 Total (Included in Employees Cost) 68,39,437.00
08 Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year NIL
09 Advances released during the year NIL
10 Closing Balance of Loans & Advances NIL
S. No. Name of MD/WTD/Manager
01 Name Sh. Sanjiv Mehta
(w.e.f. 07-06-2023)
02 Designation Director- Finance
03 DIN (Director Identification No.) 10236581
04 Salaries & Allowances 34,06,947.00
05 Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 3,03,089.00
06 Other Benefits 5,94,186.00
07 Total (Included in Employees Cost) 43,04,222.00
08 Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year NIL
09 Advances released during the year NIL
10 Closing Balance of Loans & Advances NIL
S. No. Name of KMP
01 Name Sh. Krishna Nand Sharma
02 Designation Company Secretary
03 DIN (Director Identification No.) NA
04 Salaries & Allowances 17,89,401.00
05 Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 1,58,970.00
06 Other Benefits 3,36,022.00
07 Total (Included in Employees Cost) 22,84,393.00

16
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08 Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year NIL
09 Advances released during the year NIL
10 Closing Balance of Loans & Advances NIL

17
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March ,2024

(X in Hundreds)
, . As at As at
PARTICULARS . NoteNo. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A {EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ Funds
{ay Share Capital 2.1 10,000.00 10,000.00
i{bj Reserve and Surplus 1 22 16,17,729.46 16,95,305.55
2 |Non-Current Liabilities
ia) Other Long Term Liablities v 2.3 3,978.89 2.481.33
{bj Long Term Provisions i 2.4 1,18,219.78 76,232.69
3 |Current Liabilities {
| aj Other Current Liabilities ! 2.5 8,76,754.16 5,88,632.66
{ .{b} Short -Term Provisions ‘ 2.6 57,937.58 54.,480.40
| : '
f TOTAL 26.84.619.87 24.27.132.63
B 'ASSETS
1 tNen-Current Assets
.(a) Property, Plant & Equipment
. -Tanuible Assets 2.7 72,683.55 1.00,133.76
. ~Intanzible Assets 2.8 207.63 738.43
-Capital Work in Prouress 2.9 19,74,825.81 19,26,412.38
‘ibi Deferred Tax Assets (Net: 2.10 50,741.75 70,284.54
1 itc} Other Non-Current Assets 2.11 ‘ 1,53,572.20 51,079.24
i 14
2 /Current Assets ]
| ‘ta) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.12 4,28,779.54 2,75,044.06
! 'ib; Trade Receivables 2.13 - 46.65
‘ici Other Current Assets 2.14 , 3,809.39 3,393.57
‘ TOTAL 26.84,619.87 24.27.132.63

Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts.

The accompaving notes from 2.1 to 2.39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

i ,é /J",
H,M
: ‘ ;2 @71‘ - = *,;;:zh e AT 8
Devi I’m_ o Kristha Nand Shartha Saniiv Mehita Jltendra Tvagi
M.NO. 082663 Companv Secretary Director (Finance) Managing Director
ACS-A21279 DIN 10236581 DIN 05262463

Place : Debradun
Date : 21.07.2024
UBINS 240496638k DHVUT LY Y
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arakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corpeoration Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March ,2024

(X in Hundreds)
Note | For the year ended | For the year ended
FARCUEARS No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
INCOME

i) Revenue From Operations 2.15 - -

ii) | Other Income 2.16 9,36,042.95 8,01,170.15
Total Revenue ) 9,36,042.95 8,01,170.15
Expenses

i) Emjilovee Benefits Expense 2.17 7,76,482.35 6,47,351.50

ii) | Depreciation and Amortization Expense: 2.18 23,863.53 71,445.08

iii) |  Other Expenses 2.19 1,91,691.05 1,60,434.40
Total Expenses 9,92,036.93 8,79,230.98
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional and (55,993.98) (78,060.83)
Extraordinary Items and Tax

Exceptional Items - 71,784.20
Profit/(Loss) before Tax {55,993.98) {6,276.63)
Tax Expense

{ay Current Tax - -
{b) Deferred Tax 2.20 19,542.79 | (147.68)
Profit/{Loss}) for the Year {75,536.77) (6,128.95)
Earnings Per Share-Face Value ¥ 10 Per Share
(1) Basic {0.76 {0.06)
(2) Diluted {0.76) {0.063

Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts.
The accompaying notes from 2.1 to 2.39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Devi Daval & Assoclates

Chartered m,w&mt
FRN 003810N, .

‘,,,4

Devi Daval ™ oS
M.NO. 082663 " -

Place : Dehradun
Date : 22.07.2024

Aol

Comnanv Secretarv
ACS-A21279
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Saniiv Mehta
Director (Finance)
DIN 10236581

MW‘“”MW WM

thendra Tvagi
Managing Director
DIN 05262463
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March 2024

Devi Daval"f : --_»,.?’Krishf?a Nand Sharma
M NO 082663, ./ Company Secretarv
’ At ACS-A21279

Place : Dehradun
Date : 22.07.2024

20

Sadiiv Méhta
Director {Finance)

DIN 10236581

(% in Hundreds)
For the year ended 31st| For the year ended 31st
AR
FARSCCURARS March, 2024 March, 2023
1 {A] CASHFLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (55,993.98) (78,060.83)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 23,863.53 71,445.08
Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment/Audit Expenses 45,444.27 33,576.49
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 13,313.82 26,960.74
Adjustments for Current Assets
Changes in Short Term Loans & Advances - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Recievables 46,65 (16.99)
Changes in Other Current Assets (415.82) (1,902.62)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current assets (369.17) (1,919.61)
Current Liabilities & Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables -] -
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 2,88,121.50 87,821.02
MNet Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities 2,88,121.50 87,821.02
Cash Generated from Operations 3,01,066.18 1,12,862.15
Direct Taxes Paid
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 3,01,066.15 1,12,862.15
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase/Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment/Capital Work in Progress (44,293.95) (1,68,591.52)
Net Increase/Decrease in Other Non Current assets (1,02,492.96) (15,744.10)
Increase /(Decrease) in other non current liabilities 1,497.56 (1,598.20)
Increase /(Decrease) in Capital Reserve (2,039.32) 1,77,960.68
Net Cash (Used in} Investing Activities (B) _ (1,47,330.67) (7,973.14)
(C) CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES -
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital -
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities (¢) -
Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 1,53,735.48 1,04,889.01
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,75,044.06 1,70,155.05
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,28,779.54 2,75,044.06
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand
Balances With Banks in Current & Deposit Accounts 4,28,779.54 2,75,044.06
Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts.
The accompaving notes from 2.1 10 2.39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
The above statement of cash flow have been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in AS-3 on statement of Cash Flow.
As per our revort of even date
For Devi D%M&%\. ':o_ci’fj‘tgs . For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
FRN 00310% ' V" 5 fe
A / \ d T
. v

Jitendra Tvagi
Managing Director
DIN 05262463
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Note 2.1 Share capital (¥ in Hundreds)
As at As at
FAREICUEARS 315t Miarch, 2024 31st March, 2023
Number of Amount Number of ; Amount
shares shares

(a) Authorised

Enuity shares of ¥ 10/- each [ 2.00.00,000'{  20.00.000.00 2.00.00.000 20,00.000.00

(b} Issued :‘ i

Ewuity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1.00.000 10.000.00 | 1.00 000 10.000.00

{c) Subseribed. Ca]ledmlrg and fully paid up

Euuity shares of ¥ 10/- each ) 1.00.000 10.000.00 1.00.000 | _10.000.00
Total 1,00.000 10.000.00 1.00.000 10:000.60

Note:-

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Z 10/ each per shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote
per share,

|Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the bezinning and at the end of the repiortinit eriod: '

PARTICULARS Opening Balance | Fresh issue " Bonus Closing Balance
[Ecuity shares with voting rights n -
Year ended 31 March, 2024 i}
- Number of shares 1.00.000 ; . - 1.00.000
- Amount { in Hundreds } g 10000 I - - 10.000
Year ended 31 March, 2023 |
- Number of shares 1.00.000 | - - 1,00,000
- Amount i¥ in Hundreds 10.000 | - - 10,000

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 ) 31st March, 2023
Number of shares| % holdingin | Numberof % holding in that
held that class of shares held | class of shares

i - shares |
Equity shares with voting rights _ -
Hon'ble Governer, Govt. of Uttarakhand 99.989 99.99% 99.989 99.99%
Chief Administrator (UHUDA 1! ___0.00% 1 0.00%
Vice Chairman. MDDA . 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Vice Chairman, Haridwar-Roorkee-Development Authority 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
District Majistrate- Dehradun S 1 0.00%, 1 0.00%
District Mag:istrate- Haridwar 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Add. Chief Secretary, UHUDA S| 0.00% 1 0.00%
Joint Chief Secretany, UHUDA 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Nagtar Commissioner I 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Secretary. MDDA . ¢ 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Secretary. SADA — 1] 0.00% 1 0.00%|
Secretury , Haridwar - Roorkee Development Authority.: i) 0.00% 1 0.00%
TOTAL : 1.00.000 | 100.00% 1,00.000 100.00%

Statement on change in equiiv
’ Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period

PARTICULARS Balance at the| Changein |Restated balance| Changein | Balance at the , Balance at the
beginning of | Equity share | at the beginning | Equity share current } beginning of the
the current | capital due to | of the current | capital during reporting  |current reporting
| reporting prior period ! reporting peried | the current period period
! period error E year
H
,uity Share Cayital 2 , -
' ! | =
- Number of shares 1.00,000 - - - 1.00.000 1.00.000 I
- Amount (% in Hundreds 1| 10.000 - - - 10,000 Loo.0oud .

s

D@}/, :" 5 Hg o /):_m‘;; v W"Wﬂww.

¥
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Uttéaand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Note 2.2 A Reserve and Surplus {% in Hundreds)
As at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (3.15,810.60) (3,09.681.651)
Add: Profit tloss) for the Year - {75,536.77) (6.128.95)|
Add: Excess depreciation charged during the :
Previous yvear
Add: Prior period excess Deferred Tax
Balance as at the end of the vear {3.91.347.37) | {3,15.810.60)
_Note 2.2 B Capital R : (I in Hundreds)
As at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Balance as at the begiﬁnirig of the year 20,11.116.15 18,33,155.47
Add:Addition during the Year - 1,80.000.00
Less:- Utilized during the vear® 2.039.32 2,039.32
TOTAL 20,09.076.83 20,11,116.15
GRAND TOTAL (2.2A+2.2B) 16.17,729.46 16,95,305.55

¥2,03,932/-(Previous Year ¥ 2,03,932/-).

P
3
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*Note:- Company has recognised the depreciation on depreciable asset from capital grant during the current year 2023-24



Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Note 2.3 Other Long Term Liabilities

42

(X in Hundreds)
As at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March. 2023
Security Deposits 3,978.89 2,481.33
TOTAL 3,978.89 2,481.33
Note 2.4 Long Term Provisions
(¥ in Hundreds)
As at As at
FARTICURARS » 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
 Provision for emplovee berefits
For Gratuity leave encashment, Baggage
& PRMB
As per Last vear 76.232.69 66.932.25
Addition durine the vear 42.057.41 9.300.44
Amount wilzed during the vear - -
Amount reversed.durine the vear 76,32 -
Closing balance - 1.18.2149.78 - 76.232.6%
TOTAL L18.210.78 716,232.69
Note 2.5 Other current liabilities
(X in Hundreds)
As at As at
FARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Other pavables
{i) Statutory dues :
TDS Pavables 7.678.59 1.862.95
GST Pavable 109.04
TDS on GST 247.52
ii) ili ) ent (Revenue)
Onenjmz Balance 5.43.780.80 4.74911.77
dd: ceiv venue) 11.60.000.00 8.50.000.00
Add: Imerest Received on Bank A/c 28.642.79 17.039.4%
| Less: Expenses Avainst Grant- 9.22.729.13 8.09.694.46 |  7.98.170.46 5.43.780.80 |
|__(iii) E:xpenses Pavables
E P.F Pavable i 8.947.16 6.856.68
Grauitv. Leave Encashment. NPS on Deputationist §411.92
Audit Fee Pavable 313:00 315.00
Electricity Expenses 213.83 206.55
(iv) Qther liabilities
Security Deposit from venders 1.382.04
Retention Money Deposit 18.575.20 C 17.820.60
Earnest Money Deposit 8.485.00 7.520.00 |
Others 14.076.44 8.888.64
TOTAL 8.76. 754,16 ,

23
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Note 2.6 Short Term Provisions

24

(T in Hundreds)
As at As at

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
For Gratuity leave encashment, - -
Baggage & PRMB
As per Last vear 54,480.40 30,204.35
Addition during the year 24,920.49‘ 24.276.05
Amount utilzed during the year 21,463.31 -
Amount reversed during the year -
Closing balance - 57,937.58 54,480.40

TOTAL 57.937.58 54,480.40

ff. 1
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Note 2.10 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (R in Hundreds)
As at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Deferred Tax Assets 50,741.75 70,284.54
TOTAL 50,741.75 70,284.54
Note 2.11 Other Non Current Assets (X in Hundreds)
As at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Security Deposits 7,806.50 7,713.72°
GST Receivable 35,031.33 43,365.52
LIC Fund 1,10,734.37 -
TOTAL.- 1,53,572.20 51,079.24

# The Amount of GST receivable of ¥ 35,03,133/- (P/Y ¥43,36,552./- ) is under

reconcilition with GST portal.
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited
Note 2.12 (a) Cash and cash equivalents

(X in Hundreds)
: As at As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{i) Cash on hand - -
{ii) Cheques, drafts on hand - -
(iii} |Balances with Banks in Saving Accounts - -
10B A/c No.042901000022055 609.52 172.79
HDFC S/A 8088 138.35 3,443.27
INDIAN BANK 63.24 -
PNB S/A 307006 » 527.06 813.09
TOTAL 1,338.17 4,429.15
Note 2.12 (b) Other Bank Balances
(R in Hundreds)
As at As at
FARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Deposits having original maturity more than 3 months
and maturing within 12 months
(a) -Flexi Deposits
(1)) IOB A/c No.042901000022055 4,19,144.96 1,34,136.09
(ii)) HDFC S/A 8088 246.41 6,578.82
(iii)] PNB S/A 307006 8,050.00 1,29,900.00
TOTAL 4,27,441.37 2,70,614.91
GRAND TOTAL {2.17(2)+2.17(b)} 4,28,779.54 2,75,044.06
n A g
, AN —2
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Note 2.13 Trade Receivables  in Hundreds)
As at As at

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
DMRC - 46.65
TOTAL - 46.65
Note 2.14 Other Current Assets (Z in Hundreds)
As at As at ]

FARHICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Security Deposit 1,300.00 985.00
TDS 413.94 392.88
Advance to others 271.69 245.78 |

GST (Electronic Cash Ledger) 11.44 -
Recoverable from Staff - 1,702.50
Accrued Interest- Banks 1,812.32 67.41
TOTAL 3,809.39 3,393.57
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

92

Note 2.15 Revenue from operations (% in Hundreds)
For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
TOTAL - -
Note 2.16 Other income (% in Hundreds)
RS For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICUL 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Sale of Tender Forms 10,600.00 800.00
Capital grant recognised against depriciable assets 2.039.32 2.039.32
Misc. Income _ 482.60 151.66
Interest Received on Income Tax Refund 15.72 8.71
Interest Received on Security Deposit 21.25 -
Liquidate Damage Recovered 154.93 -
Revenue Unutilized Grant of FY 2022-23 5,43,780.80 4,74,911.77
Grant Received in FY 2023-24 11,60,000.00 8,50,000.00
Add: Interest Received 28,642.79 17,039.49
Less: Unutilized Grant 8.09.694.46 9,22,729.13 5,43,780.80 7.98,170.46
TOTAL 9,36,042.95 8,01.176.15

Note:-1. An amount of ¥ 11,60,00,000/- during the current year (Previous yearZ 8,50,00,0000/- ) have been recieved from Govt.

of Uttarakhand for salary and other expenditures of UKMRC.An amount of ¥ 9,22,72,913/-during current year (previous year ¥,
7,98,17,046/-) have been utilised for salary and other expenditures of UKMRC . Interest earned on Government Grant has been
considered as a part of Government Grant and consequently reflecting in the accumulated credit balance at the financial year end.

2. The unutilised grant amounting to ¥ 4,49,64,606/- (Z 8,09,69,446/- less T 3,60,04,840/- fixed assets) as on 31.03.2024, 2
1,84,52,838/- (X 5,43,78,080/- less T 3,59,25,242/- fixed assets) as on 31.03.2023 will be utilised in subsequent year for salary

and other expenditure of UKMRC.

3. Company has recognised the depreciation on depreciable asset from capital grant during the current year ¥ 2,03,932/-(P/Y-%
2,03,932/-). s |
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Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corporation Limited

Note 2.17 Employee Benefits Expenses (R in Hundreds)
For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(a) Salaries & Wages 5,51,422.50 5,19,571.08
(b) Director Remuneration 1,72,823.53 1,01,515.74
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses 1,209.59 349.09
(d) Employer Contribution to PF/others 51,026.73 25,915.59
‘ TOTAL 7,76,482.35 6,47,351.50
Note 2.18 Depreciation And Amortization Expenses R in Hundreds)
For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{a)Tangible Assets 23,082.75 71,290.43
(b)Intangible Assets 780.78 154.65
TOTAL 23,863.53 71,445.08
r;,'" '\2 " ”Ww »WW ,,,,,,,
| [9{{3} ) R ”
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Note 2.19 Other expenses

54

Uttaa and Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure And Building Construction Corperation Limited

35

(X in Hundreds)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
FEECURARS March, 2024 March, 2023
Advertisement 2,609.54 3,149.66
Audit Fee 413.00 413.00
Bank Charges 16.07 33.14
| Books & Periodicals Expenses 249.16 261.53
Housekeeping Expenses 16,902.73 14,352.74
Insurance Expenses 387.64 434.62
Rates & Taxes 2,106.12 91.00
Office Expenses 2,873.68 3,293.59
Postage & Telegram 118.64 | 71.50
Power and Fuel 6,362.95 4,198.48
Printing and Stationary & Computer Consumables 3,570.46 3,533.07
| Lepal & Professional Fee 15,270.37 5,199.16
Rental Expenses 57,445.20 52,494.68
Repairs & Maintenance -Computer 572.86 549.19
Repairs & Maintenance -Plant & Machinery 1,396.08 877.05
Repairs & Maintenance -Others 48027 1,492.30
Telecommunication Expenses 6,970.86 7.268.30
Prior Period 10,200.57 -
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 3,067.74 4,330.83
Travelling & conveyance expenses 59,085.93 56,861.26
Recruitment, Training & Workshop 1,303.66 1,303.40
| Survey Expenses 287.52 225,90
TOTAL 1,91,691.05 1,60,434.40
Note 2,20 Tax Expenses
(% in Hundreds)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
PARTCULARS March, 2024 March, 2023
Deferred Tax 19,542.79 {147.68)
TOTAL 19,542.79 (147.68)
45 y e S
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l. Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity

Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure & Building Construction Corporation Limited (the"
Company”) with 100 % equity participation of the Government of Uttarakhand, is a Company
domiciled and incorporated in India (CIN No. : U45309UR2017SGC007687). The address of
the company’s registered office is SCI Tower, 3rd & 4th Floor, opposite Mahindra Show Room,
Ajabpur Khurd, Haridwar Bypass Road, Dehradun-248001 ( Uttarakhand). The company is
primarily involved in Planning, Designing, Construction, Operation, Consultancy, Advisory,
Project Management Services, Preparing Feasibility Reports for Mass Rapid Transit System,
Sub-Urban Rail System other People Mover Systems of all type of description including river,
hill transport/Ropeway systems, Personal Rapid Transport (PRT) systems and Infrastructure
Project etc., Planning, Construction, Maintenance and Operation of all type of building and
township efc.

B. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of Preparation: Statement of Compliances

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis in line with the
generally accepted accounting principles in india and the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013,as amended from time to time including accounting standards (AS) notified thereunder.
Further, the Guidance Notes/Announcements issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountant
of India (ICAl) are also considered, wherever applicable, as adopted consistently by the
company. The Company has uniformly, applied the accounting policies during the periods
presented. These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company in their 25 Board Meeting held on 07 July 2023.

1.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is the Company'’s functional
and presentation currency.

1.3 Basis of Measurement:
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting under the historical cost
convention except as otherwise provided in the policy.

1.4 Use of estimates and management judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that may impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of
Assets, Liabilities, Income, Expenses and related disclosures concerning the items involved as
well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. The estimates and
management’s judgements are based on previous experience and other factor considered
reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual resuits could vary from these estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas
of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that may hamfe the
most significant effect on the amaunt recognized in the financial statements is as undez; '
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a) Useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment:

The estimated useful life of property, plant & equipment is based on a number of factors inciuding
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors {such as the
stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance
expenditure required to obtain the expected future cash flow from the asset.

The useful life and residual value of company’s assets are determined by the management at the
time the assets is acquired and reviewed periodically,including at each financial year and along
with depreciation method.

b) Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment:
The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is based on estimates and assumptions
regarding, in particular, the expected market outlook and future cash flows associated, Any
changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable
amount-and could resuit in impairment.

¢) Post-employment benefits plan:

Employee benefits obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include
mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions conceming future developments in discount
rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the
assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any
changes in these assumptions may have an impact on the resulting calculations.

d) Revenues:
The company recognizes /accounted income and expenditure on accrual basis ‘except as
otherwise provided.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

a) An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

b) PPE are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including decommissioning or
restoration cost wherever required. The cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition/construction of the asset. Where final settlement of bills with contractors is
pending/under dispute, capltahza’clon is done on esttmated/provnsxonal basis subject to
necessary adjustment in the year of final settlement.

c) Property, Plant & Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

d) Deposits, Payments/ liabilities made provisionally towards compensation, rehabilitation and
other expenses relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

€) Asset created on land not belonging to the company where the company is having control over
the use and access of such asset are included under Property, Plant and Equipment.

f) Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
itis probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

g) -Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or upon its disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

1.6Capital work in Progress -

a) Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost under
Capital work in Progress (CWIP). Such cost comprises of purchase price of asseb»fm»:ludmg
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition y@cessm'y for_'i:.‘
it to be capable of operatmg in the intended manner. Srd )
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b} Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not have
control but the creation of which is essential for constriction of the project is carried under
“Capital work in progress”,

¢) Expenditure on Survey and Investigation including DPR etc. of the Project is carried as capital
work in progress and capitalized as cost of Project on completion of construction of the Project
or the same is expensed in the year in which it is decided to abandon such project.

d) Expendlture against “Deposit Works” is accounted for on the basis of statement of account
received from the concerned agency and acceptance by the company. However, provision is
made wherever considered necessary.

e) Claims for price variation/ exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted for on
acceptance.

1.7 Intangible Assets

a) Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. intangible
assets are recognised if:
i ltis probable that the expected future economic benefit that are attributabie to the asset
will flow to the entity; and
i.  the cost of the asset can be measured reliably
b) Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.
c) Subsequent expenditure on already capitalized Intangible assets is capitalised when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in an existing asset and is amortised prospectively.
d) Software (not being an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for internal use, is stated at
cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
€) An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

1.8 Impairment of property , plant & equipment and intangible assets

a) The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets primarily include property, plant and equipment,
which are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’'s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Impairment losses recognized in earlier period are assessed at each reporting date for any
indication that loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
foss had been recognized.

A8 Inventories

a) Inventories mainly comprise stores and spare parts to be used for maintenance of Préperty Pfant_-»
and Equipment. : v
g




Inventories including loose tools are valued at the lower of cost,determined on weighted average
basis and net realizable valye.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimate selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Net realizabie value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores & spares is ascertained at the
end of financial year and provided for, wherever required.

Scrap is accounted for as and when sold.

1 10 Foreign Currency Transactions:

i,

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are initially recorded at exchange rate prevailing
on the date of transaction.
At each Balance Sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are reported at the exchange rate prevailing af the date of transaction.
Exchange differences arising on translation or settiement of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it arises.

1.11Government Grants

i)

iii)

Grants from the Government / Non- Government or other authorities towards” Capital
Expenditure” for creation of assets are recognised on the basis of terms and conditions of the
sanctions and initially shown as ‘Grant received in Advance’. These are subsequently recognised
as income each year over the life of the relevant assets in proportion to depreciation on those
assets.

Grants from the Government/ Non- Government or other authorities towards “Revenue” has been
recognised as per utilization basis in the “Statement of Profit & Loss” under the head “Other
Income”.

Where the Company receives non- monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded at
nominal values.

1.12Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the borrowing costs.Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction/erection or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur.

1.13Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a) A provision is recognised when:
i.  the Company has present legal or constructive obligation as result of past event;
ii. it Is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
cbligation; and
iii. areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as provision is the best estimate of consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the ng&ﬁ and
uncertainties surroundmg the obligation. ' ;
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b)

c)

d)

e)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obiigation is
disclosed as a contingent fiability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate,

Liability for claims against the Company is recognized on acceptance by the Company/ receipt
of award by the Arbitrator and the balance claim, if disputed/ contested by the contractor is
shown as contingent liability. The claims prior to arbitration award stage are disclosed as
contingent liability.

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgement of
management. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the
current management estimate.

1.14Revenue Recognition and Other Income

a)
b)

c)

income from sale of scrap is accounted on realisation basis.

Interest/surcharge/liquidated damages recoverable from suppliers and contractors, wherever

there is uncertainty of realisation/acceptance are accounted for on receipts/acceptance.

Revenue from external project work is recognised as follows:

1) Cost plus contracts- revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of
expenditure plus proportionate margin as per contract.

2) Fixed price contract- revenue represents the cost of work performed on the contact plus
proportionate margin using the percentage of completion method. Percentage of
completion is determined as a proportion of cost of work performed to- date to the total
estimated contract cost,

1.15Employee Benefits

Employee benefits consists of wages, salary, benefit in kind, provident fund, pension, gratuity, post
retirement benefit, leave benefit and other terminal benefit ete.

i)

i)
iif)

The contribution to the Provident Fund for the period is recognized as expense and is
charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. Company obligation towards post-retirement
benefits, sick leave and earned leave etc. are actuarially determined and provided for.
The gratuity liability to employees is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The actuarial valuation for above include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as

" assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates, the rate of salary
increases and the inflation rate. The company considers that the assumptions used to
measure its obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these
assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations.

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment of the Company is charged to the Statement of

o
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Profit & Loss on Straight Line Methog in accordance with Schedule-1i of the companies actza‘_f;’r .



b)

9)

Depreciation on the following items of Property, Plant and Equipment is charged on Straight Line

Method on estimated useful life:

i. Battery of Inverter at official residence fully (100%) — 2 Years- Straight Line Method

ii. Mobile Phones depreciated fully (100%) - 3 years- Straight Line Method

Depreciation on additions to /deductions from Property, Plant & Equipment during the year is
charged on pro-rata basis from / up to the month on which the asset is available for use / dusposed
Temporary erections are depreciated fully (100%) in the year of acquisition /capitalization.
Assets costing up to Rs 5000/- are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.
Depreciable amount is the cost of an assets, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual
value. The residual value adopted 5% of the original cost of asset except otherwise provided in
the Policy.
Expenditure on software recognized as ‘Intangible Asset’ and is amortized fully on straight line
method over a period of legal right to use or four years, whichever is less. Other intangible assets
with a finite useful life are amortized on a systematic basis over its useful life. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method of intangible assets with a finite useful life is reviewed at each
financial year end.
Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to
increase/decrease in long term liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price adjustment,
settlement of arbitration/court cases, change in duties or similar factors, the unamortized balance
of such assets is depreciated prospectively over the residual life of such asset determined
following the applicable accounting policies relating to depreciation/ amortization.
Where the life and / or efficiency of an asset is increased due to renovation and modernization,
the expenditure thereon along with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged prospectively
over the revised / remaining useful life determined by technical assessment.

1.17 Income Taxes

a)

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current Tax is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax is expected tax.payable on taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and taxable
income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted
as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward to the extent
there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

1.18 Material prior period errors

1.19 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/n@a%@uffeﬁi

!ncome/Expend:ture relating to a prior period, which does not exceed % 50, OOOI-for each ltems,_?v

are treated as income/expenditure of current year.

classification.
An asset is current when it is;

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
b) Held primarily for the purpose of tradmg
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¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
a) ltis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
b} ltis held primarily for the purpose of frading
c) ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

1.20 Aliocation of Interest During Construction

Interest During Construction (IDC) in respect of qualifying assets commissioned during the year, is
allocated in the ratio which the value of commissioned assets bear to the qualifying CWIP as at the
end of the month of commissioning.

1.21 Insurance Claims
Insurance claims are accounted for based on acceptance of claims.
1.22 Prepaid items
Individual items of prepaid Expenses over ¥50,000/- each are recognised.

1.23 Statement of Cash Flows
a) Cash and cash equivalents includes cash/Drafts/Cheques on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,

b) Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in AS-
3 Cash Flow Staternent”

S~
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OTHER EXPLANATORY NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

2.22 Change in significant accounting policies:

During the year Significant accounting policies have been modified/Addition have been made
for improved disclosure. However, on the Financial Statements due to the above, the
materiality of statement does not effect.

2.23 Contingent Liabilities:

(% in Hundreds)

Particulars Asat | Asat |
i |
i 31.03.2024 g 31.03.2023 E
NIL i NIL
Claims against the company not acknowledged as ;
debt . ]
Other contingent liability NIL ‘ NIL
Il o
Total | NIL § NIL
| | |
2.24 Contingent Assets:
(% in Hundreds)
Particulars Asat = Asat

i
' 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023

Contingent Assets ! NIL NIL

Total ' NIL NIL

2,25 Estimated amount of commitments not provided for is as under:
. S {¥ in Hundreds)
Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

!
;
L

i Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 1,86,383.92 36,298.52'_4

E executed on capital account and not provided

% for

" Other commitments T 3194144 | 91,971.74

f Total ’ 2,18,325.36 1,28,270.26 |

L




2.26 The effect of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation during the year is as under

(Z in Hundreds)

Particulars Year Ended | Year Ended |

‘ 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 i

| Amounts charged to Profit & Loss a/c (FERV) Nil Nil g
Amount adjusted by addition to carrying amount of Nil ‘ NIL 5

| fixed Assets !
! |
Total Nil NIL [

|

|

2.27 Payment to the Statutory Auditors: -
(T in Hundreds)

: Particulars ! Year Ended Year Ended
i » i 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
| Audit Fees 350.00 _ 350.00 ;
| Tax Audit/ITR file Fees 200.00 o
| Reimbursement of GST ~63.00 99.00 |
Reimbursement of expenses : - -
Total ; 413.00 . 649.00

-

2.28 Disclosure under the provisions of AS-15 ‘Employee Benefits’: -
a) Employers’ contribution to Provident Fund:

The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at predetermined rates to Regional Provident
Commissioner Dehradun, Uttarakhand. The obligation of the company is limited to such fixed contribution.
Further, contribution to employee pension scheme is paid to the appropriate authorities

b) Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benefit Gratuity Plan, which is regulated as per the provisions of
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended from time to time. The liability for the same is
recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

¢) Leave Encashment:

The company provides for earned leave benefit and the liability for the same is recognised on
the basis of actuarial valuations.

d} Post Retirement Medical Scheme:

The Company has a Post retirement medical scheme, under which retired employee shall be eligible for
reimbursement of expenditure incurred on indoor treatment for self and spouse at the same rate as
applicable to regular employees of equal level. The liability towards the same is recognised omtﬁe bams of
actuarial valuation S R
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e} Baggage Allowance:

66

Actual cost of shifting for himself and/or his family from place of duty at which employee is posted at
the time of retirement to home town or to any other place where he / she may like to settle after
retirement is paid as per the entitlement/rules of the Company. The liability towards the same is
recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Key Actuarial assumptions for Actuarial Valuation:

Particulars

|

As at

31.03.2024

As at

31.03.2023

_MBrtality Table

IALM (2012-14)

IALM (2012-14) |

Discount Rate | 7.28% 7.45% |
g 1
Future Salary Increase - | 7.00% il 7.00% Jl
iIl. Employee benefit obligations at the end of year:
— X inHundreds)
Sl. ! Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
No. Current |  Non Total Current = Non Total
Current ) __ Current
1. | Leave 36,378.90 , 54,993.26 | 91,372.16 | 38,290.27 ; 36,523.33 | 74,813.60
Encashment ‘ =
2. | Gratuity 16,727.62 | 35,464.20 |  52,191.82 | 13,809.92 | 19,045.89 | 32,855.81
3. Post-Retirement 2,530.73 27,738.17 30,268.90 861.45 | 20,569.00 | 21,430.45
|| Medical Benefit | ‘ I R
4. Baggage 2,300.33 | 24.15 2,32448 | 1,518.76 94.47 1,613.23
Allowance o o o
Total 59,937.58 | 1,18,219.78 | 1,76,157.36 | 54,480.40 | 76,232.69 z 1,30,713.09 .
: ‘ ,,.«uwl‘"“"“ -: ,:,_ i
P
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Change in Present Benefit Obligation:

61

(% in Hundreds)

Sr.

Particular
s

Earned Leave

Gratuity

Bagg;

£

Post Retirement
Medical Benefit

2023-24

2022-23

2023-24

2022-23

2023-24

2022-23

2023-24 | 2022-23

Present
value of
obligation
as at the
beginning
of the
period

74,813.60

59,703.45

32,855.81

24,995.29

b)

Acquisitio
n

adjustmen |

i

Interest R
Cost

5,573.61

4,304.62

2,447.76

1,802.16

Service
Cost

27,519.84

20,143.98

13,347.28

7,809.89

Past
Service
Cost
including
curtailmen
t Gains/
Losses

¢

Benefits
Paid

(-)20,884.05

8)

Total
Actuarial
(Gain)/
Loss on
Obligation

4,349.16

| (1933845

3,540.97

(-)1,751.53

h)

Present
value of
obligation
as at the
End of the
period

91,372.16

74,813.60

52,191.82

32,855.81

2,324.48

1,613.23

30,268.90 | 21,430.45

3

o)
g
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1N Sénsitivity analysis of the Defined Benefit Obligation:

a) impact of the change in the discount rate

(% in Hundreds)

Particulars

Earned Leave

Gratuity

Baggage

Post Retirement
Medicai Benefit

2023-24 | 2022-23

2023-24 | 2022-23

2023-24 | 2022-23

| 2023-24 | 2022-23

Present
Value  of |
Obligation

at the end |
of the |
period

91,372.16 | 74,813.60

i

52,191.82 | 32,855.81

2,324.48 | 1,613.23

| 30,268.90 | 21,430.43

a)

Impact due
to increase
of 0.50%

(4,231.28) | (2,147.40)

(2,459.32) | (1,640.63)

Impact due
to decrease
of 0.50% |

4,367.54 | 2,323.72

|

2,708.82 | 1,812.95

b) Impact of the change in Salary Increase

(% in Hundreds)

Sl

|8

Particular |

2023-24

Earned Leave

2023-24

Gratuity

Baggage

Post Retirement
Medical Benefit

2022-23

2023-24 | 2022-23

H

{

2023-24 | 2022-23

| end

Present

Value of
Obligatio
n at the
of

the
period

91,372.16

52,191.82

32,855.81

i

2,324.48 | 1,613.23

30,268.90 | 21,430.43

a)

| of0.50% |

Impact
due
increase

to

4,359.13

2,322.57

i

2,312.72

{1,455.22

.0f0.50%

impact
due to
decrease

| (4,260.93)

H
i :
i
¥

(2,165.77)

(2,123.73)

{1,337.37)

49



2.29 Name of the Subscriber (in representative No. of capacity for and on behalf of

Uttarakhand Government) shares

si Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
No. No. of Shares | No. of Shares
1 Hon'ble Governor, Govt of Uttarakhand 99,989 99,989
2 Chief Administrator (UHUDA) 1 1
3 Vice Chairman, MDDA 1 1
4 Vice Chairman, Haridwar-Roorkee Development Authority 1 1
5 | District Magistrate, Dehradun B 1 1
i 6 | District Magistrate, Haridwar 1 1 N
7 Add. Chief Secretary, UHUDA 1 4
8 Joint Chief Secretary, UHUDA 1 1
9 Nagar Commissioner 1 1
10 | Secretary, MDDA 1 1
11 | Secretary, SADA 1 1
12 | Secretary, Haridwar-Roorkee Development Authority 1 1

2.30 The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances of

banks and other parties.

2.31 Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

_(Zin Hundreds)

Particulars Yearended | Year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
| a) Amount remaini_ha unpaid to any supplier: -
i
Principal amount - -
Interest due thereon _ - -
b) Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the - -
MSMED Act along with the amount paid to the suppliers
beyond the appointed day.
) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of - -
elay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
_lhe appointed day during the year) but without adding the
%interest specified under the MSMED Act. ;
d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid -
) ~ Amount of further interest remaining due and payable - B -
even in the succeeding vyears, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 5
| enterprises, for the purpose of disallowances as a deductible f-\ﬂ.‘"ﬁl \
i ) . AY; R = = _
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2.32 "Related Parties Disclosures”:
a. Directors and Key Management Persons:
. Shri Jitendra Tyagi, Managing Director

. Shri Sanjiv Metha, Director Finance,
. Shri Krishna Nand Sharma, Company Secretary

Ut N e

. Shri Arvind Tyagi, Director- System & Rolling Stock up to 31.08.23
. Shri Brajesh Kumar Mishra, Director Project & Planning

b. Disclosure of transactions of the company with Key Management Persons:

(i) sh. Jitendra Tyagi, Managing Director

(Z in Hundreds)

' Particulars 2023-24 1 2022-23
Salaries & Allowances 62,254.86 58,070.79
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 5,530.65 5,085.12

! Gratyity & E.L., Group Insurance 55,543.,69 36,461.94
Other Benefits 3,908.40 1,372.08
Total (included in Employees Cost) 1,27,237.60 ) 1,00,889.93 :
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil Nil
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil Nil

| Closing Balance of Loans & Advances Nil Nil

(ii) Sh. Arvind Tyagi, Director- SRS (up to 31-08-2023)

L

{Z in Hundreds)

Particulars 2023-24 l 2022-23

' Salaries & Allowances _ o 22,581.04 51,697.71
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 1,995.51 4,527.06
Gratuity & E.L., Group Insurance 23,462.78 | 16,321.73
Other Benefits 4,568.40 ' 1,688.39
Total (included in Employees Cost) 52,607.73 74,234.89 ]
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil = Nil |
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil Nil
Closing Balance of Loans & Advances Nil Nit

(iii) sh. Brajesh Kumar Mishra, Director Project & Planning

{Z in Hundreds)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Salaries & Allowances 53,918.16 50,295.99
_Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 4,790.04 4,817.46
Gratuity & E.L., Group Insurance 13,870.39 7.843.97
Other Benefits 9,686.17 2,438.48
Total (included in Employees Cost) 82,264.76 65,395.90
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil Nil
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil Nil
Closing Balance of Loans & Advances Nil L NI
W e 1
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(iv) Sh. SANJIV MEHTA Director-Finance (w.e.f.

07-06-2023)

11

(% in Hundreds)

| Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

. Salaries & Allowances ~34,069.47 Nil -

i Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 3,030.89 i Nil
Gratuity & E.L., Group Insurance 5,489.03 : Nil
Other Benefits 5,941.86 ‘ Nil
Total (included in Emplovees Cost) 48,531.25 il

| Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year i Nil Nil
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil Nil
Closing Balance of Loans & Advances Nii Nil

(v) Sh. Krishna Nand Sharma, Company Secretary

(% in Hundreds)

Particulars | 2023-24 2022-23 '
Salaries & Allowances _ ! 17,894.01 16,690.86
Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 1,589.70 1,461.60
Gratuity & E.L., Group Insurance 12,570.90 9,277.32
Other Benefits B 3,360.22 Nil
Total (included in Employees Cost) 35,414.83 27,428.78
Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nl Nit o
. Recovery of Loans & Advances during the year Nil Nil
| Closing Balance of Loans & Advances Nil Nil

2.33 Disclosure in respect of Accounting Standard (AS)-20: Earning Per Share

(% in Hundreds)

| Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 }
Profit (Loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit & (75,538.77) (6,128.95) [
Loss
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Basic 100000 100000
. Diluted 100000 100000
| Basic Earnings Per Share (Face Value of ¥ 10 per | (0.76) (0.086)
share) | ,
Diluted Earnings Per Share (Face Value of ¥ 10 per (0.76) (0.06) ;
share) i
’{Ai ale 40y
o A
57/’/ i
i
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2,34 Additional information pursuant to Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars (F in Hundreds)
2023-24 2022-23
a) Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
Raw Materials, Stores and Spares and

Capital Goods NiL NiL
b) Expenditure on Foreign Currency on:

Tours & Travel NIL Nil
¢} Earnings in Foreign Exchange NiL NiL

d) Value of Components, Spare Parts &
Stores Consumed NIL NIL

Expenditure on foreign tour during the year is Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil) including foreign
currency spent during the year in equivalent Rs Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil).

2.35 Disclosure as per AS 22- Taxes on Income Deferred Tax
The company has following deferred tax assets and liabilities:

(% in Hundreds)

2023-24 2022-23
Deferred Tax Assets 50,741.75 70,284.54
Deferred Tax Liability NIL NIL
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 50,741.75 70,284.54

2.36 Corporate Social Responsibility

The Provision of Section 135 of Companies Act’2013 is not applicable, Hence the provision
for CSR Expenses have not been made.

2.37 Impairment of Assets as per AS 28
In the opinion of management there is no indication of any significant nmpalrment of assets

during the year.

2.38 Opening balances/corresponding figures for previous year/period have been re-
grouped/re- arranged, wherever necessary. oy :
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2.39 Board of Directors authorised Director(Finance) and Company Secretary to rectify the
errors and carry out modifications, if any.

As per our report of even date annexed

For Devi Dayal & §@2o0pTeT , For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chart}a{gg;ﬁgccountants
FRM . e
e
¥ A
“*«,:'m;,x‘ : 3 - ¥ ,»‘-’M’/ *2 ’/*/’.’ P ) e
8 T ' &”ﬁ 0'7 P pa %“ L e g T G
Ml e .*"v{, Rmisins :,,,»w ”
Devi Dayal Kristna Nand Sharma Sanjiv Mehtia Jitendra Tyagi
M No: 082663 ' Company Secretary Director{Finance) Managing Director
ACS-A21279 DIN~10236581 DIN 05262463

Date: 22.07.2024

Place: Dehradun
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i/% DEVI DAYAL & ASSOCIATES

%; CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
3 C-10/2, SARA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE LTD, VILLAGE RAMPUR, 23° KM,
DEHRADUN CHAKRATA ROAD SELAQUI, UTTARAKHAND-248197

PH:9312278902 MAIL iD:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To,
The-Members,
Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure &
Building Construction Corporation Limited
4th Floor, SCl Tower, NH -72, Haridwar bypass Road,
Opposite Mahindra Showroom, Ajabpur, Dehradun

Report on Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban
Infrastructure & Building Construction Corporation Limited which comprise the balance sheet as at March
31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, Profits or Loss for the year -
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providg.a basis for
our opinion. S el

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most Siéniﬂcanc,e iﬁ our

audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
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and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We believe that that during the period under
audit, there were no key audit matters which required communication in our report.

Information other than the Financial statements and Auditors' Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises of the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or cur knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears o be
materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going,
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus %;i:?,"fra,ud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audi%févifiengé that _}é».
j o ’;\,‘., i R
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sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. if we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease o continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial staterments of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 “(the Order “} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11 ) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books; ‘ '

¢} The Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d)} Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on Mﬁrch 31

F ol

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act; %
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f)

g

In accordance with MCA Notiﬁé"cion dated 13th June 2017 (GSR 583(E)}, separate reportingf

on Internal Financial control over financial reporting of the company and other effectiveness of

such control is Exempt.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according o the explanations given to us:

iii.

vi.

vii.

viii.

the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position in its financial statements;

ii) the company did not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses ; and

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”}, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v} The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief , no
funds have been received by the Company from any person{s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to my/our notice that has caused
me/us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i} and (i} of Rule 11(e)
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2024 and thus the reporting requirement as per Rule 11(f) is not applicable.

In accordance with the reporting requirement as per Rule 11(g) w.r.t the audit trail, we
confirm that based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail {edit log) facility.

DEVI DAYAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartemad Accouma nts
F:rm (% regnszmtzon x‘zumber 003910N

KJN i }

\\&\U'vﬂ u

Membershxp number 082663
Place: New Delhi

Date: 22/07/2024

UDIN: 2Y0€ 266 36KDHUTUFUY
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ANNEXURE — A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 3 1

{(Referred to in Paragraph {1} under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date) The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Uttarakhand Metro Rail,
Urban Infrastructure & Building Construction Corporation Limited (the Company’) for the year Ended on
March 31, 2024. We report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b} The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed
to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
10 the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the
fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

{c}) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

{d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during
the year.

{e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rules made there
under.

(i) (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

{iii) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {iii) (a) to {f} of the order are not applicable to the company
and hence not commented upon. :

{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the companies Act,2013 in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and security.

(v} The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directive issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the companies {Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits
accepted from the public are not applicable.

{vi) As informed to us, the maintenance of cost Records has not been specified by Central Government
under sub section (1) of Section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the
company.

{vii) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, and records, the company has been generally regular in depositing Undisputed
statutory dues including provident Fund, Employees state insurance, income ~tax, goods & service
tax, duty of customs, Duty of Excise, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in the respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than
six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b} According to information and explanations given to us there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and’
Services Tax, Custom Duty Of Excise, outstanding on account of any dispute.

{viii) There were no such transactions which were disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 but not recorded in the books of accounts.

{ix)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the compasy has not
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The company has not taken any !W?n ;;zit‘f*%é’;: frem
financial institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures. ‘ "';:\ TR
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(x) Based upon the audit procedures perfm:med and the information and explanations given by the 32

management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and has also not made any preferential allotments or private
placement of share or convertible debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) of the
order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

(xi} {(a} Based upon the audit prdcedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company or on the company

by its officers or employees has not been noticed or reported during the year.
{b) No report under sub-section (12} of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the
auditors with the Central Government.
(¢} As per the information provided to us, there were no whistle-blower complaints received during the
year by the company.

{xii)  In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the company.

(xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) {a) In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system which commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

{b) The report of internal auditors for the period under audit was considered by the statutory auditors.

{xv)  Based upon the auditors procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly the provisions of clause 3 (xiv} of the Order are not applicable to
the company and hence not commented upon.

(xvi)}  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and Accordingly the provisions of clause 3 {xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

(xvi}  The Company has Incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial the losses incurred in the financial statements were only due to charge of the depreciation
and provision for statutory payments which are non- cash in nature.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, and the
auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans the auditor is of the opinion
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

{xx)  The Company does not fall under the criteria mentioned under section 135 (1) of the Companies
Act 2013, accordingly the provisions of section 135 are not applicable on the company and hence
not commented upon.

{xxi)  The Financial Statements of the Company are standalone financial statements and accordingly, the
provisions of clause {xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented
upon.

For, DEVI DAYAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accoyntants
FRN: 0§3910N / E

”fﬁ,

Partner Merrtbership number: 082663
Place: New Delhi

Date: 22/07/2024

UDIN: 240226628k DHUTYHFYY
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As required by section 143(5) of the Act, we give in Annexure B and its impact on the accounts
and financial statements of the company.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account,

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

(f} in our opinion, the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls are adequate,

{g} In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been
paid/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act:

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us,

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position,

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

¢. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For,

DEVI DAYAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants .

Firm's regiéthation number; 003910N

S

Partner y*

T
Membershig pumber: 082663
Place: Mew Dethi™

Date: 22/07/2024

UDIN: 2U0 8264 2k DHVTHAUY
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*Annexure B" to the Independent Auditor's Report”

Report on the directions and sub directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
india, the action taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and financial statements of the
company under section 143(5) of the Act

A. Directions

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through
1T System? if yes, the implication of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity on the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated?

Response: The Company uses Tally ERP 9 as its main accounting system and it has a multi user
feature. It uses single integrated IT application to capture and record transactions for the
purpose of processing and obtaining approvals.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of any existing loans or cases of waiver write off of debts
Jloan/ interest ete. made by lender to the company due to the company inability to repay the
loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated?

Response: According to the information and explanations given to us by the company and based
on the examination of the records of the company, there is no loan due for repayment. Therefore, no
such transaction took place in the year under consideration.

3. Whether funds received / receivable for specific scheme from center/state agencies were
properly accounted for /utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of deviations?

Response: According to the information and explanations given to us by the company and based
on the examination of the records of the company, all the funds received were properly applied
for the specific purpose for which the same was received.

For,
DEVI DAYAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Acc,guntan’ts

T L
Membetship riimber: 082663
Place: New Delhi
Date: 22/07/2024

UDIN: AMORLELZRXDHU TY Uy
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*Annexure C to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure & Building Construction Corporation Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the‘Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban
infrastructure & Building Construction Corporation Limited (the Company”} as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls .

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the interal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors Responsibility :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financizal Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3) prawde reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, cr d,
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

63



Inherent Limitations of internal Financlal Controls Over Fipancial Raporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, Including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are sublect 1o the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with tha policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria estabiished
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporiing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india.

For,

DEVI DAYAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration Aumber: 03910N

o
-

Partner oy
Membership number: 082663
Place: New Delhi

Date: 22/07/2024
UDIN 24082 6638%DH UTY 34y
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT
GENERAL (AUDIT),
UTTARAKHAND

Ltr No: AMG-11/2024-2025/D1S-1992559
Date: 03 Sep 2024
"To,

Managing Director,
Uttarakhand Metro Rail Urban Infrastructure and Building Construction Corporation Limited,
Dehradun.

Subject: ITRIES ATI Xl e IAHRCTR TS fAIRET Fepe SR fiftes R wrfien v -
- PR-123906 -

Sir/Madam,

m&rﬁrﬁmzo1saﬁw143%(b)$whmﬂﬁweﬁqmmqgﬁ%ﬂmﬂ
PIURTA fIRRE & 31 AR 2024 B YA T8 F Faird A@rai TR * IR THYET FHI0 * SR fbar S <&l

gl
P13 UF &1 Urad! Ui¥a B
Yours faithfully,
Encls: As above
PRAVINDRA YADAV

Principal Accountant General
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UTTARAKHAND METRO RAIL, URBAN
INFRASTRUCTURE & BUILDINGS CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024.

The preparation of financial statements of Uttarakhand Metro Rail, Urban Infrastructure &
Buildings Construction Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in
accordance with financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory Auditor appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 22.07.2024.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not
to conduct the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Uttarakhand Metro Rail,
Urban Infrastructure & Buildings Construction Corporation Limited for the year ended 31
March 2024 under section 143 (6) (a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Date: 03 September 2024
Place: Dehradun -sd-
(Pravindra Yadav)

Principal Accountant General (Audit)
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